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VISION STATEMENT

To be a customer oriented C ompany having wide and diversified customer base with a

team of professionals working together to add value to all the stakeholders and

contributing to society to help build a strong and progressive Pakistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of AN Textile Mills Limited is, recognition of its project as the most modern

units, and to produce fine quality of product with the understanding of customer

behavior. Build the Company on sound financial footings, increase

handsome distribution of dividend to its shareholders .

earnings for
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 44™ Annual General Meeting of the members of AN Textile
Mills Limited (“the Company”) will be held on Monday, October 27, 2025 at 11:00 A.M.
at its registered office situated at 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad to transact the
following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1.

To confirm the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2024.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2025 together with the Chairperson’s review, Directors’ and Auditors’ reports
thereon.

3. To appoint the auditors of the Company for the next financial year and to fix their
remuneration. The retiring auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad and Company, Chartered Accountants,
being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other business that may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair.

By order\of the Board

Dated: October 06, 2025 Muzammal \Jamil

Faisalabad (Company Sectetary)

NOTES:

1. CLOSURE OF SHARE TRANSFER BOOKS
The share transfer books of the Company shall remain close from October 20, 2025 to October
27, 2025 (both days inclusive). Transfers received at the Share Registrar Office M/s Corplink
(Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial, Model Town, Lahore by the close of
business on October 18, 2025 will be considered in time.

2. PARTICIPATION IN ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A member entitled to attend and vote at the general meeting is entitled to appoint another
member as proxy. The proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company not
less than 48 hours before the meeting.

CDC account holders will further have to follow the under mentioned guidelines:

A. FOR ATTENDING THE MEETING:

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC

Regulations, shall authenticate his identity by sharing scan copy his original CNIC or original
passport at least 48 hours before the AGM.
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B. FOR APPOINTING PROXIES

In case of individuals, the account holder or sub-account holder and/or the person whose
securities are in group account, and their registration details are uploaded as per the CDC
Regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the requirements notified by the Company.

The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers
shall be mentioned on the form.

Attested copies of CNIC or the passport, of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
furnished with the proxy form.

In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution/power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted along with proxy form.
Form of proxy is annexed at the end of annual report as well as available at Company’s website

i.e., www.antextile.com.pk
CHANGE OF ADDRESSES
Shareholders are requested to notify the change in their addresses if any, immediately.

COMPUTERISED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD NUMBER / NATIONAL TAX
NUMBER

In compliance with regulatory directives issued from time to time, members who have not yet
provided their Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) Numbers and/or National Tax Number
(NTN), as the case may be, are requested to kindly provide copies of their valid CNIC and/or NTN
certificates at the earliest.

UNCLAIMED SHARES / DIVIDEND

Shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per the record, there are some
unclaimed/uncollected/ unpaid dividends and shares. Shareholders who could not collect their
dividends/shares are advised to contact our Shares Registrars to collect/enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017,
after having completed the stipulated procedure, of three years or more from the date due and
payable, shall be deposited to the credit of Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend and
in case of share, shall be delivered to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.
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0.

DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SITARES INTO CDC ACCOUNT

As per section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing Company shall be required o replace
its physical shares with book-entry form in a manner as may be specified and from the date notified
by the Sccurities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), within a period not exceeding
four years from the commencement of the Act. In this regard, SECP wvide its Letter No.
CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-640 dated March 26, 2021 has advised all the listed companies to pursue
their sharcholders who still hold shares in physical form, requiring them to convert their shares in
book-entry form. Holding shares in book-entry form has numerous benefits including secure
custody of shares, instantancous transfer of ownership and no risk of damaged, lost, forped or
duphcate certificates. Accordingly, sharcholders having physical sharcholding are requested to
converl their shares in book-gntry lform by opening CDC sub-account with any of the brokers or
Investor Account directly with CDC (o place their physical shares into script-less (orm.

TRANSMISSION OF ANNUAL REPORT ELECTRONICALLY

SECP through its notification SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the
circulation of audited financial statements along with the notice of Annual General Meeting
electronically to the shareholders of the Company through email. Theretore, sharcholders who
wish Lo rcecive the sofl copy ol Annual Report are requested to send their c-mail addresscs,
The consent form [or cleetronic transmission can be downloaded (rom the Company’s websile.
The Company shall however, continue 1o provide hard copy of the audited linancial statements
to its shareholders, on request free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such request,

AVAILABILITY OF AUDITED FINANCTAL STATEMENTS ON COMPANY’S
WEBSITE

In compliance with SECP notification No. 634(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014, the audited financial
statements and reports of the Company for the vear ended June 30, 2025 are being placed on the
Company’s websile: www.antextile.com.pk for information and review of the members.

VIDEO LINK FACILITY

The members may demand the Company to provide the facility of video-link for participating in
the AGM. To attend the meeting (hrough video link, members and their proxics arc requested to
register themselves by providing the followng information along with valid copy of Computerized
National ldentity Card (both sides)/passport, attested copy of board resolution / power of altorney
(in casc of corporate sharcholders) through email at csi@antextile.com.pk.

Name of Member/Proxy CNIC Nao. I'oho No/CDC Cell No s Lmail
holder Account No, WhatsApp No Address

The video link and login credentials will be shared with the sharcholders whose e-mails, contaming
all the requested particulars, are received at the given e-mail address.
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CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW
Tor the vear ended June 30, 2025

The Board of Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited (“the Company”) is performing its duties in
accordance with law and in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as required
under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors of the
Company is carried out. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board’s overall
performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context
of objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2025, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness
has been assessed as satisfactory. This is based on an evaluation of integral components,
including vision, mission and values; engagement n strategic planning; formulation of policies;
monitoring the organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource management;
effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the
Board’s business.

AN Textile Mills Limited complies with all the requirements set out i the Law with respect to
the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees.
Necessary Board agenda and related supporting documents were duly made available to the
board in sufficient time prior to the board and its committees™ meetings. The Board has exercised
all its powers in accordance with relevant laws and regulation and the non-executive and
independent directors are equally involved in important decisions of the Board.

NaQua pyst
Mrs~Nazma Amer
Charrperson
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHARE HOLDERS

The Directors of the Companyare pleased to present their 44™ Annual Report along with audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the fnancial year ended June 30, 25 along with
Auditors’ Report thereon and other required information prescribed under the Code of Corporat
Governance. The comparative financial results of the Company are reproduced hereunder:

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH

CUSTOMERS 4,492,440 3,460,089
COST OF SALES (4,440,080) (3,391,953)
GROSS PROFIT 52,360 68,136
DISTRIBUTION COST (6,942) (5,507)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (62,179) (67,397)
OTHER EXPENSES (18) (21,415)

(69,139) (94,319)

(16,779) (26,183)
OTHER INCOME 369 5,070
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (16,410) (21,113)
FINANCE COST (49,582) (50,178)
LOSS BEFORE LEVY AND TAXATION (65,992) (71,291)
LEVY (56,155) (43,251)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (122,147) (114,542)
TAXATION 19,140 4,166
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (103,007) (110,376)

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED (RUPEES) (10.66) (11.43)

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

In the fiscal year under review, revenue grew by 29.84% from Rupees 3,460.089 million to
4,492.440 million while cost of sales increased by30.90% from 3,391.953 million to 4,440.080
million. The Company earned gross profit of Rupees52.360 million as compared to previous
year’s gross profit of Rupees 68.136 million. Moreover, the Company faced loss after taxation o
Rupees 103.007 million as compared to loss after taxation of Rupees 110.376 million in
corresponding year.
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In financial year 2024-25, the Pakistani textile sector particularly spinning continues to face
acute stress. This sluggish trend is mainly due to the high cost of performing business compared
to our neighboring countries, high energy costs, weaker demands and competitive imports,
disproportionate selling prices of yarn, political instability and constant increase in minimum
wages.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

The future outlook of Pakistan’s spinning industry appears cautiously optimistic, supported by
gradual recovery in both domestic and global textile demand. The government’s focus on
improving agricultural productivity, including initiatives for better cotton seed quality and pest
management, is expected to enhance the availability and quality of raw cotton, reducing reliance
on imports and stabilizing input costs.

However, the industry faces challenges such as high energy tariffs, outdated machinery, and stiff
competition from regional players. Many spinning units are operating on thin margins due to
fluctuating cotton prices and inconsistent policy support. To stay competitive, modernization
through technological upgrades, energy-efficient machinery, and enhanced productivity will be
crucial. Efforts to diversify yarn exports and explore value-added segments could also strengthen
the sector’s long-term resilience.

Looking ahead, sustainability and innovation will play a defining role in the industry’s growth.
Global buyers are increasingly prioritizing eco-friendly and traceable supply chains, pushing
Pakistani spinners to adopt cleaner production methods and certification standards. If supported
by stable government policies, energy reforms, and investment in modernization, Pakistan’s
spinning industry can regain momentum, increase export as well as local earnings, and play a
pivotal role in reviving the overall textile value chain.

The management remains cognizant of these challenges as it continues its efforts to regain its
profitability by increasing its market efforts to increase in share of the market. We also remain
focused on the challenge of reducing our operating costs and using our efficiencies to maximize
our returns. Moreover, the Company will operate on its optimum capacity as it has support from
interest free loans obtained from the directors of the Company and facility of borrowings from
the banks to meet the liquidity requirements.

LOSS PER SHARE

The loss per share for the year ended June 30, 2025 is Rupees 10.66 as compared to loss per
share of Rupees 11.43 for the last year ended on June 30, 2024.

DIVIDEND

Since the company has incurred loss, therefore, the directors have not recommended any
dividend for the year.
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OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS
All outstanding payments are nominal and of routine nature.
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2025 is annexed. No trade in the shares of the company
was carried out during the year by its Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary and their
spouses and minor children except for the sales / purchase of shares as mentioned on page no. 79
of the financial statements.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm’s length. The prices are determined in
accordance with comparable un-controlled price method. The Company has complied with best
practices on transfer pricing as contained in listing regulations of the Stock Exchanges of
Pakistan.

AUDITORS

The auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants retired and being eligible for
re-appointment, the Board of Directors has been suggested by the Audit Committee, the re-
appointment of M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of your
company for the next financial year.

RISK MANAGEMENT

Risk assessment is an on-going process that highlights numerous uncertainties that poses
potential threats which may hinder the accomplishment of objectives of the Company. If these
risks are not being addressed in timely manner, may culminate in loss. Such risks and
uncertainties can arise both from external as well as internal factors within the Company.
Various risks are being faced by the company and summarized as follow along with mitigating
strategies.

STRATEGIC RISKS

The strategic risks such as critical availability of gas, electricity and alternate fuels for power
generation, and changes in domestic competitive scenario are being continuously monitored. The
Company’s expansion plans and growth targets are revisited with changing market situation.
Changes in macro-economic indicators, inconsistent / arbitrary changes in Government Policies
and significant increase in natural gas, electricity and other fuel prices making cost of production
substantially higher are also being closely monitored & duly considered. Appropriate mitigation
strategies are formulated to reduce the impact of these risks to an acceptable level.

10
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OPERATIONAL RISKS

Business continuity and disaster recovery plans are in place to ensure that continuity in
production and sales operations; in case of major failures and outages to ensure continuity,
sustainability and avoid any disruption to the business. Raw material sourcing, adequate
segregation of duties, self- sufficiency in power generation at our plants, efficient supply chain
and logistic operations have enabled us to mitigate operational risk to an acceptable level.

FINANCIAL RISKS

One of the major financial risks is the fluctuation of the exchange rate and adverse movements
can directly affect our raw material costs and also lead to a rise in manufacturing costs. The
Company is aware of this situation and monitors such movements carefully to ensure minimum
shocks. Strict financial discipline, cash flow management and investment of available funds in
best possible avenues aid us in minimizing Financial Risks.

COMPLIANCE RISKS

Due to effective compliance with laws and regulations and transparent financial reporting
framework, compliance risk posed to the Company remains low. The Board promotes risk
management and compliance culture in the Company. Litigation risks involving significant cases
against the Company are handled through reputable Law firms with specialized expertise
wherever required.

HEALTH SAFETY AND ENVIORNMENT

Company believes in and are fully committed to improve Health, Safety and Environment
standards to achieve sustainable performance. Your Company was quick to implement the
Standards Operating Procedures (SOPs) to combat any climate change.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company admits its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) towards the society and believes
in supporting the community.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board recognizes that well defined corporate governance processes are vital to enhancing
accountability. We are committed to ensuring high standards of corporate governance to
maintain stakeholder value. The Board has been diligent and has contributed effectively in
guiding the Company in all its strategic affairs. The Company keep close co-ordination with the
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Pakistan Stock Exchange and complies
with the Code of Corporate Governance in the letter and spirit. The statement of compliance with
best practices of Code of Corporate Governance is annexed.
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CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:

In compliance to listing regulations of stock exchanges and as required under the Companies
Act, 2017, your Directors are pleased to state as under:

1.

The financial statements prepared by the Management of your Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these

financial statements and accounting estimates, which are based on reasonable and prudent
judgment.

International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements. The system
of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

There is no doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

Key operating financial data of last six years in summarized form is annexed.

. The Company operates un-funded gratuity scheme for its employees as reflected in these

financial statements.

COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTIES

The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

Male: Five
Female: Two

The composition of the Board is as follows:

1. Independent Directors
Syed Khalid Ali
Mr. Umar Muneer

1i. Non-executive Directors
Khawaja Amer Khurshid

12
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111. Executive Direclors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr. Anns Aamer

v I'emale / Non-executive Directors

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Mrs. Y usra Amer

The Board has [ormed commilices comprising ol members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Umar Munecer Chairman
Mrs. Yusra Amer Member
Sved Khalid Al Member

HR and Remmuneration Commitice

Syed Khalid Ali Chairman
Mr. Umar Muncer Mcember
Mr. Anns Amer MMember

Nomination Committee

Mr. Umar Muncer Chairman
Mrs. Yusra Amer Member
Syed Khalid Al Member

Risk Management Committce

Mr. Anns Amer Chairman
Mr. Umnmar Muncer Member
Sved Khalid Alr Member

Sustainability Committee

Mr. Umar Munccer (Chairman)
Mrs. Yusra Amer (Member)
Sved Khalid Alx (Member)

13
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NO. OF BOARD AND OTHERCOMMITTEES’ MEETINGS HELD:

Sr. | Name Board Of Audit HR & Nomination Risk Sustainability
# Directors Committee Remuneration Committee | Management Committee
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee
Meeting

1 | Mrs. 4/4 - - - - -
Nazma
Amer

2 | Mr. Aizad 4/4 - - - - -
Amer

3 | Khawaja 4/4 - - - - -
Amer
Khurshid

4 | Mr. Anns 4/4 - 1/1 - 1/1 -
Amer

5 | Mrs. Yusra 4/4 4/4 - 1/1 - 1/1
Amer

6 | Syed 4/4 4/4 11 11 11 1/1
Khalid Ali

7 | Mr. Umar 4/4 4/4 171 171 171 1711
Muneer

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places on record its appreciation for the cooperation, commitment and hard work extended t
the Company by the customers, suppliers, bankers and all the employees of the Company.

FAISALABAD.
Dated: September 29, 2025

On behalf of t

Board

( mer)
Chief Exetutive Officer

(Khawaja Amer Khurshid)
Director
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: AN Textile Mills Limited
Year Ending: 30 June 2025

The Company has compiled with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: Five
b. Female: Two

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

1. Independent Directors
Syed Khalid Ali
Mr. Umar Muneer
il. Non-executive Director
Khawaja Amer Khurshid
1ii. Executive Directors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr. Anns Amer

1v. Female / Non-executive Directors

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Mrs. Yusra Amer

* The fraction of independent directors is not rounded up as one because the fraction of 0.33 was
less than 0.50.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this Company;

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of particulars of the
significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is maintained by the Company;
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10.

I1.

12.

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and
these Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in her absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements of
Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting
of the Board;

The Board has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

Four directors, Mr. Aizad Amer, Mr. Anns Amer, Syed Khalid Ali and Mr. Umar Munir has
already acquired the certification under Directors’ Training Program (DTP) whereas another
director, Khawaja Amer Khurshid meets the exemption criteria of minimum of 14 years of

education and 15 years of experience on the Boards of listed companies, hence exempt from
DTP.

The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary and Head

of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board;

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Mr. Umar Muneer (Chairman)
Mrs. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Syed Khalid Ali (Chairman)
Mr. Umar Muneer (Member)
Mr. Anns Amer (Member)

¢) Nomination Committee

Mr. Umar Muneer (Chairman)
Mrs. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)
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13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

d) Risk Management Committee

Mr. Anns Amer (Chairman)
Mr. Umar Muneer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

e) Sustainability Committee
Mr. Umar Muneer (Chairman)
Mrs. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advise«
to the committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings of the committees were as follows-

Committee Frequency
Audit committee Quarterly
HR and remuneration committee Yearly
Nomination committee Yearly
Risk Management committee Yearly
Sustainability committee Yearly

The Board has set up an effective internal audit functionby appointing Head of Internal Audit
who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose andis conversant with the
policies and procedures ofthe Company;

The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the Quality Contol Review program of The Institute of Chartered Accountants of
Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partner
are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code o
ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and th
partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent an
non-dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Finarcial Officer, Head of Internal
Audit, Company Secretary or Director of the Company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other regulator
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in thi
regard,;

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with; and
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19. Explanation for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33
and 36 are below:

Sr. No. | Requirement Explanation for Non-compliance Reg. No.
1 Directors’ Training Program: 19(1)(iii)
It is encouraged that by 30 June,
2022 all the directors on the board | The Board will arrange DTP for its
to acquire the prescribed | remaining two directors in the
certification under any Director | next financial year.
Training Program (DTP) offered by
institutions.
2 Training of Head of Department: 19(3)(ii)
Companies are encouraged to| The Company will organize the
arrange training for at least one | training of its one head of
head of department every year| department each year from next
under DTP from July 2022. financial year.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Na Qs sk

NAZKIA AMER

Chairperson

AIZAD AMER
Chief Executive Officer
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PARTICULARS

FINANCIAL POSITION

Paid up capital

S]J'rl((' 1)1{ E[l:nll[[l
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STATISTICS AND RATIOS
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1:0.65 Lol 1078 1103 Ly

10 Lo 1 10 0
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1,315,177
22361
72.443)

(7,854
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REVIEW REPORT

To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance Contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code
of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of
Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2025 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of
the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects
the status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if
it does not and to highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations.
A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various
documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an
understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit
and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the
Board of Directors’ statement on internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an
opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance
procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their
review and approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured
compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the
Company for the year ended 30 June 2025.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartéred Accountants

/jgi Alwerd s 2.
Faisalabad
Date: 29 September, 2025.

UDIN: CR202510184C3ih65FdO
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AN Textile Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2025, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations
which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the
audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive loss, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2025 and of the loss, other
comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit natters:

Inventories as at 30 June 2025
amounting to Rupees 378.424
million, break up of which is as
follows:

- Stores, spare parts and loose
tools of Rupees 74.197 million

- Stock in trade of Rupees 304.227
million

Inventories are measured at the
lower of cost and net realizable
value.

We identified existence and valuation
of inventories as a key audit matter
due to its size, representing 19.32%
of the total assets of the Company as
at 30 June 2025, and the judgment
involved in valuation.

For further information
inventories, refer to the following:

on

- Material accounting policy
information, Inventories (Note 2.7
to the financial statements).

- Stores, spare parts and loose
tools (Note 15) and Stock in trade
(Note 16) to the financial
statements.

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in
No. our audit
1. | Inventory existence and
valuation .
Our procedures over existence anc

valuation of inventories included, but were
not limited to:

To test the quantity of inventories a
all locations, we assessed the
corresponding inventory observatior
instructions and participated in
inventory counts on site. Based or
samples, we performed test counts
and compared the quantities counteg
by us with the results of the countg
of the management.

For a sample of inventory items, re
performed the weighted average
cost calculation and compared the
weighted average cost appearing or]
valuation sheets.

On a sample basis, we tested the ne
realizable value of inventory items tg
recent selling prices and re
performed the calculation of thg
inventory write down, if any.

In the context of our testing of the
calculation, we analyzed individua
cost components and traced then
back to the corresponding underlying
documents.

We also made nquiries from
management, including those
outside of the finance function, ang
considered the results of our testing
above to determine whether an
specific write downs were required.

We also assessed the adequacy o
the disclosures made in respect o
the accounting policies and relateg
notes to the financial statements.
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The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 4,492.440 million
for the year ended 30 June 2025.

We identified recognition of revenue
as a key audit matter because

revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an

inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to the
following:

- Material accounting policy,
Revenue recognition (Note 2.18
to the financial statements).

- Revenue from contracts with
customers (Note 23 to the
financial statements).

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in
No. our audit
2. | Revenue recognition

Our procedures included, but were not
limited to:

We obtained an understanding of the

process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating

effectiveness of key internal controls
over recording of revenue.

We compared a sample of revenus
transactions recorded during the yean
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents.

We compared a sample of revenug
transactions recorded around the year
end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and other
relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue wag
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

We assessed whether the accounting
policies for revenue recognition complies

with the requirements of IFRS 15
‘Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'.

We also considered the appropriatenesg
of disclosures in the financia
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises th:
information included in the annual report, but does not include the finarial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.
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Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in @ manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);
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b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII
of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Liagat
Ali Panwar.

/d’ Hloind & cp.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Faisalabad
Date: 29 September, 2025.
UDIN: AR2025101847F90baje4
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NOTE 2025
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

2024

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMER 23 4,492,440 3,460,089
COST OF SALES 24 (4,440,080) (3,391,953)
GROSS PROFIT 52,360 68,136
DISTRIBUTION COST 25 (6,942) (5,507)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 26 (62,179) (67,397)
OTHER EXPENSES 27 (18) (21,415)

(69,139) (94,319)

(16,779) (26,183)
OTHER INCOME 28 369 5,070
LOSS FROM OPERATIONS (16,410) (21,113)
FINANCE COST 29 (49,582) (50,178)
LOSS BEFORE LEVY AND TAXATION (65,992) (71,291)
LEVY 30 (56,155) (43,251)
LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (122,147) (114,542)
TAXATION 31 19,140 4,166
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (103,007) (110,376)
LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 32 (10.66) (11.43)
The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

,A* “/W/ i 2
KHAWAJA

AIZAD AMER
Chief Executive Officer

AMER KHURSHID
Director

Muhamgmad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NOTE 2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
LOSS AFTER TAXATION (103,007) (110,376)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) / INCOME

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurement (loss) / gain arising on staff retirement gratuity 8.4 (6,543) 6,642
Related deferred income tax liability 1,897 (1,928)
(4,646) 4,716

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit aor loss - -

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year - net of deferred income tax (4,646) 4,716

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS FOR THE YEAR (107,653) (105,660)

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

- !

& /
AIZAD AMER KHAWAXJA AMER KHURSHID Muhamimad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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al

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

NOTE 2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash generated from operations 33 34,453 215,396
Finance cost paid (49,001) (56,078)
Mark-up paid against lease liability - (314)
Income tax and levy paid (88,674) (29,463)
Staff retirement gratuity paid 8.1 (18,104) (14,644)
Net increase in long term deposits and prepayments (320) (23)
Net decrease / (increase) in long term loans 10 (200)
Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (121,636) 114,674
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment 12 (69,839) (25,361)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 624 459
Net cash used in investing activities (69,215) (24,902)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Short term borrowings - net 181,001 (90,980)
Repayment of lease liability - (1,583)
Net cash from / (used in) financing activities 181,001 (92,563)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (9,850) (2,791)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 26,868 29,659
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE

END OF THE YEAR 22 17,018 26,868

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AIZAD AMER
Chief Executive Officer

Aﬂ‘ / b’ & 7
KHAWAXJA AMER KHURSHID Muhammad Saqib Ehsan

Director Chief Financial Officer
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2.1

a)

b)

)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025

THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies
Act, 1913 (Now Companies Act, 2017) on 04 February 1982 and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on 08
March 1989. Its registered office and mills premises are situated at 35-Kilometers Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad.
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, sale and trading of yarn and cloth. A liaison office is
situated at 404-405, 4th Floor, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASB) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial staterents have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as otherwisa stated in
the respective accounting policies.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reparting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based an historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant o
the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exercised in application of accounting policies are
as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimates for revalued amounts of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valuation
performed by external professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Company. The said
recommendations also include estimates with respect to residual values and depreciable lives. Further, the
Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment an an annual basis. Any change in the estimates
in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and equipment with a
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Inventories

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each
reporting date on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and dedines in net realizable value and an
allowances is recorded against the ‘nventory balances for any such declines,
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d)

e)

Income tax and levy

In making the estimates for income tax and levy currently payable by the Company, the management takes into
account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax depariment at the assessment
stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the
amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based
on the lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumption to allocate an overall
expected credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent sale experience and historical
collection rates.

Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying
amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any
adjustments to the amount of previously recognized provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an asset.

Contingencies
The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and cleims against the Company. Based on the
judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or

provision is made. The actual outcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts
of the liabilities recognized at the statement of financial position date.

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods
When recognizihg revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the

Company is considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time
that the customer abtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Staff retirement gratuity

The actuarial valuation of staff retirement gratuity requires the use of certain assumptions related to future
periods, including increase in future salary and the rate used to discount future cash flows to present value.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and
are relevant to the Company

Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2024:

« Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' — Classification of liabilities as current or nan-current;

» Amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements' — Non-current liabilities with covenants;

& Amendments to [FRS 16 'Leases’ — Lease liability in a sale and leaseback transaction; and

= Amendments to TIAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disclasures’ — Supplier
finance arrangements.

The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts
recagnized in prior period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

Amendments to published appraved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not
relevant to the Company

There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after
01 July 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's
financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these finandial statements.

al
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g)

2.2

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
but relevant to the Company

Following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Company’s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2025 or later periods:

IFRS S1 ‘General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustsinability-related Financial Information’. IFRS S1 sets out
averall requirements for sustainability-related financial disclosures with the objective to require an entity to
disclose information about its sustainability-related risks and oppertunities that is useful to primary users of
general purpose financial reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity,

IFRS 52 *Climate-related Disclosures’. IFRS 52 sets out the requirements for identifying, measuring and disclosing
information about climate-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose
finandial reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.

As per the current scenario, the Company will fall in Phase-I1I of the criteria as per the order from Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated 31 December 2024, Therefore the effective date of these two
sustainability standards for the Company is for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2027.

The International Accounting Standards Board (1ASB) has published 'Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11'. The amendments are effective for annual reperting pericds beginning on or after 01
January 2026. It contains amendments to following standards relevant to the Company, as result of the IASB's
annual improvements project:

- IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;
- IFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and
- IAS 7 Staternent of Cash flows.

Classification and Measurements of Financial Instruments (Amendments to IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments:
Disclosures' and IFRS 9 'Finandial Instruments") effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2026. These amendments address matters identified during the past - implementation review of the classification
and measurement requirements of IFRS 9.

Lack of Exchangeability {Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'). The
amendments contain guidance to specify when a currency is exchangeable and how to determine the exchange
rate when it is not, The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January
2025.

IFRS 18 'Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
01 January 2027) with a focus on updates to the statement of profit or loss. The objective of IFRS 18 is to set out
requirements for the presentation and disclosure of information in general purpose financial statements to help
ensure they provide relevant information that faithfully represents an entity’s assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses. The key new concepts introduced in IFRS 18 relate to: the structure of the statement of profit or loss;
required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance measures that are reported
outside an entity’s financial statements (that is, management-defined performance measures); and enhanced
principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial statements and notes in
general. IFRS 18 will replace TAS 1; many of the other existing principles in IAS 1 are retained, with limited
changes. IFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the financial statements, but it
might change what an entity reparts as its ‘aperating profit or loss'”.

The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
and not considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published approved standards that are mandatery for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2025 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

Praperty, plant and equipment

a) Operating fixed assets

All operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss,
except those subject to revaluation which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment loss. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to
the construction / erection period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
working condition.
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2.3

b

—

]

al

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized, net of
deferred income tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in sharshalders
equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the
increase is first recagnized in the statement of profit ar loss, Decreases that reverse previocus increases of the
same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable
to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or lass. Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and
depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of deferred income tax, is reclassified from surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment to accumulated loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
anly when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of
profit or lass during the period in which these are incurred.

Valuations are performed frequentdy encugh to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amount.

Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing
balance method so as to write off the cost [ depreciable amaount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at
the rates given in Note 12. The Company charges the depreciation on additions from the month when the asset is
available for use and on deletions up to the month preceding the month when the asset is de-recognized. The
residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial year-end and adjusted if
impact on depreciation is significant.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when na future econemic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is included in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognized.

Leases
Right-of-use assets

A right-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date net of any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs incurred.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired periad of the |ease or the estimated
useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the leased assel
at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is charged over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are
subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term
leases with terms of 12 menths or less and leases of low-value assets, Lease payments of these assets are
recognized as expense on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities

A lease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The |lease liability is initially recognized at the
present value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of @
purchase option when the exercise of the option is reasanably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination
penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the period in
which these are incurred.

Lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The carrying amounts are re-
measured if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index ar a rate
used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase cpticn and termination penalties. When a lease
lighility is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of-use asset, or to statement of profit
ar loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset is fully written down.
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

al

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or
changes in drcumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount for which asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Non-financial assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Reversals of the
impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if impairment losses had not been recognized. An
impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as share capital and recognized at their face value. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deductien, net of tax, if any

Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long term financing are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of
respective qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long term financing. All other interest, mark-up
and other charges are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

[nventories, except for stock in transit, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value Cost is determined
as follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stores, spare parts and lcose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered
obsolete are carried at nil value. In transit stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at invoice amount plus
other charges paid thereon.

Stock in trade
Cost of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

(i) For raw materials: Weighted average cost.

{ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including a portion
of preduction overheads

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stock is
valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the erdinary course of business less estimated cost of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make a salz. Provision for obsolete and slow moving items is made
based on management's estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balance with banks in current and saving accounts and other
short term highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Staff retirement gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme, calculated from the date of their jeining with
the Company. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation using the
Prejected Unit Cradit Actuarial Cost Method. Tha meathod involves making assumptions about discount rates,
future salary increases and mortality rates. The latest actuarial valuation was conducted by an independent
actuary. The obligation at the date of statement of finandial position is measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows. All contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year.

Actuarial gains and losses (remeasurement gains [ losses) on staff retirement gratuity are recognized immediately
in other comprehensive income.
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2.10

2.11

2.12

2,13

Provisions

Provisians are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal ar constructive) as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to sette the
obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

Taxation and levy
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
lavs for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected
to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. Final taxes levied under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and any
excess over the amount designated as provision for current tax are charged as levy in statement of profit or loss,
The charge for current tax and lavy also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provisian for tax
and levy made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability methed in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liahilities in the finandal statements and the correspanding
tax bases used in the computstion of the taxable profit. Deferred tax lizbilifes are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temparary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directy in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distribution to the Cempany's shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's finandial
statements in the period in which it is declared and other appropristions are recognized in the peried in which
these are approved by the Board of Directors.

Financial instruments

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
Financial assets

a) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost. The classification depends on the Company's
business madel for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest. Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments at amortized
cost. Financial assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amartized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other
income [ (other expenses).

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in statement of profit or loss.
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i)

iii)

(a)

(b)

iv)

Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes alowance for Expected Credit Lesses (ECLs) on financial assets measured at amortzed cost.

The Company measures loss allowance for ECLs at an amount equal ta lifetime ECLs except for the bank balances
and debt securities for which credit risk (the risk of default cccurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonahle and supportable informatian that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis,
based on the Companys histarical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than past
due for & reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument, 12-menths ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result frem default events
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the grass carrying amount of
the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Campany individually makes an assessment
with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following abservable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract such as a default:

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise; or

- it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other finandial recrganization.

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a finandal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retain contrel over the transferred asset. Any interest in such
de-recognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or
liability.

Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a financial liability (or a part of financial liability} from its statement of financial
position when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize
the assets and to settle the lishilities simultaneously.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

ii)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

2.19

Borrowings

Financing and borrowings are initially recognized at fair value and are subseguently measured at amortized cost.
Any difference between the proceeds and redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss aver
the period of borrowings using the effective interast method.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

Cther receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses,
Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the
transaction cost and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic envirenment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reparting date.
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settiement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
charged or credited to statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers - Sale of goods

Revenue fram the sale of goods is recognized at the peint in time when the customer abtains contral of the
goods, which is generally at the time of delivery.

Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of
calculating the amartized cost of a financial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using
the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other revenue
COther revenue is recagnized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.
Contract assets

Cantract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods ta a
customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as
financial assets for impairment purposes.

Right of return assets

Right of return asssts represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of
customers who may exercise their right to return the goeds and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the
value at which the inventary was previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any
impairment.

Contract liabilities
Contract liability is the obligation of the Cempany to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has
received cansideration fram the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods,

a contract liability is recognized when the payment is received. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue whean
the Company accomplishes its performance obligations under the contract.

Earnings / (loss) per share

Tha Company presents Earnings Per Share (EFS) / Loss Per Share (LPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS / (LPS)
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

al

49




ANNUAL REPORT 2025 AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

2.1

a)

b)

)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2025
THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies
Act, 1913 (Now Companies Act, 2017) on 04 February 1982 and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited on 08
March 1989, Its registered office and mills premises are situated at 35-Kilometers Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad.
The principal activity of the Company is manufacturing, sale and trading of varn and cloth. A liaison office is
situated at 404-405, 4th Floor, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

The material accounting policy information applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set aut
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reparting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
(IASE) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017, and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ fram the IFRSs, the provisions of
and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

Accounting convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as otherwise stated in
the respective accounting policies.

Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reporting standards
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its judgment
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to
the Company's financial statements or where judgments were exerdsed in application of accounting policies are
as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimates for revalued amounts of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valuation
performed by external professional valuer and recommendation of technical teams of the Company. The said
recommendations also include estimates with respect to residual values and depreciable lives. Further, the
Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Any change in the estimates
in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and eguipment with a
corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Inventories

Inventory write-down is made based on the current market conditions, historical experience and selling goods of
similar nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes in market conditions. A review is made on each
reparting date on inventories for excess inventories, obsolescence and declines in net realizable value and an
allowance is recorded against the inventory balances for any such declines.
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d)

e)

al

Income tax and levy

In making the estimates for income tax and levy currently payable by the Company, the management takes into
account the current income tax law and the decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.
Instances where the Company's view differs from the view taken by the income tax department at the assessment
stage and where the Company considers that its view on items of material nature is in accordance with law, the
amounts are shown as contingent liabilities.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based
on the lifetime expected credit loss, grouped based on days overdue, and makes assumption to allocate an overall
expected credit loss rate for each group. These assumptions include recent sale experience and historical
collection rates.

Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public
expectations, technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying
amounts of provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes, Any
adjustments to the amount of previously recognized provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss
unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an asset.

Contingencies
The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and claims against the Company. Based on the
judgment and the advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial outcome, appropriate disclosure or

provision is made. The actual cutcome of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts
of the liahilities recognized at the statement of financial position date.

Revenue from contracts with customers invalving sale of goods
When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance cbligation of the

Company is considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time
that the customer obtains control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Staff retirement gratuity

The actuarial valuation of staff retirement gratuity requires the use of certain assumptions related to future
periods, including increase in future salary and the rate used to discount future cash flows to present value.

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and
are relevant to the Company

Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s accaunting
periods beginning on ar after 01 July 2024:

« Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' — Classification of liabilities as current or non-current;

» Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ — Non-current liabilities with covenants;

+ Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases' — Lease liability in a sale and leaseback transaction; and

« Amendments to IAS 7 'Statement of Cash Flows' and IFRS 7 'Financial Instruments: Disdosures’ — Supplier
finance arrangements.

The abave-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amaunts
recognized in priar period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods,

Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but net
relevant to the Company

There are amendments to published standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on ar after
01 July 2024 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s
financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these finandial statements.
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2.2

Standards and amendments te published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
but relevant to the Company

Following standards and amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the
Company's accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2025 or later periods:

IFRS S1 'General Requirements for Disclosure of Sustainability-related Financial Information”. IFRS S1 sets out
overall requirements for sustainability-related financial disclosures with the objective to require an entity to
disclose information about its sustainability-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of
general purpose financial reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.

IFRS S2 'Climate-related Disclosures’. IFRS S2 sets out the requirements for identifying, measuring and disclosing
information about climate-related risks and opportunities that is useful to primary users of general purpose
financial reports in making decisions relating to providing resources to the entity.

As per the current scenario, the Company will fall in Phase-I11 of the criteriz as per the order from Securities and
Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) dated 31 December 2024. Therefore the effective date of these two
sustainability standards for the Company is for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2027.

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) has published ‘Annual Improvements to IFRS Accounting
Standards — Volume 11'. The amendments are effective for annual report ng periods beginning on or after 01
January 2026. It contains amendments to following standards relevant to the Company, as result of the IASB's
annual improvements project:

- [FRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures;
- [FRS 9 Finencial Instruments; and
- [AS 7 Statement of Cash flows.

Classification and Measurements of Financial Instrumeants (Amendments to IFRS 7 ‘Financial Instruments:
Disclasures' and IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January
2026. These amendments address matters identified during the past - implementation review of the classification
and measurement requirements of IFRS 9.

Lack of Exchangeability (Amendments to IAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates'). The
amendments contain guidance to specify when a currency is exchangeable and how to determine the exchange
rate when it is not. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01 January
2025.

IFRS 18 ‘Presentation and Disdosure in Financial Statements’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
01 January 2027) with a focus on updates to the statement of profit or loss. The objective of IFRS 18 is to set out
requirements for the presentation and disclosure of information in general purpose financial statements to help
ensure they provide relevant infermation that faithfully represents an entity's assets, liabilities, equity, income and
expenses. The key new concepts introduced in IFRS 18 relate to: the structure of the statement of profit or loss;
required disclosures in the financial statements for certain profit or loss performance measures that are reported
autside an entity’s financial statements (that is, management-defined performance measures); and enhanced
principles on aggregation and disaggregation which apply to the primary financial stetements and notes in
general. IFRS 18 will replace [AS 1; many of the cther existing principles in [AS 1 are retained, with limited
changes. IFRS 18 will not impact the recognition or measurement of items in the financial statements, but it
might change what an entity reports as its “operating profit or loss’.

The above amendments and impravements are likely to have no significant impact on the financial statements.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
and not considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published approved standards that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on ar after 01 July 2025 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant
impact cn the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements,

Property, plant and equipment

a) Operating fixed assets

All operating fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss,
except those subject to revaluation which are stated at revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and any
identified impairment loss. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to
the construction / erection period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to
working condition.

al

52




ANNUAL REPORT 2025

AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

2.3

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized, net of
deferred income tax, in other comprehensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders'
equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognized in the statement of profit or loss, the
increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of the
same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable
to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss, Each year, the difference between
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or loss and
depreciation based on the asset's original cost, net of deferred income tax, is reclassified from surplus on
revaluation of property, plant and equipment to accumulated loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of
profit or loss during the period in which these are incurred.

Valuations are performed frequently encugh to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ
materially from its carrying amaount.

b) Depreciation

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing
balance method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at
the rates given in Note 12. The Company charges the depreciation on additions from the month when the asset is
available for use and on deletions up to the month preceding the month when the asset is de-recognized. The
residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial year-end and adjusted if
impact on depredation is significant.

c) De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset is induded in the
statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognized.

Leases
Right-of-use assets

A right-of-use asset is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The right-of-use asset is measured at
cost less accumulated depredation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability, adjusted for, as applicable, any lezse payments made at or before the
commencement date net of any lease incentives received and any initial direct costs incurred.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated
useful life of the asset, whichever is shorter. Where the Company expects to obtain ownership of the leased asset
at the end of the lease term, the depreciation is charged over its estimated useful life. Right-of use assets are
subject to impairment or adjusted for any re-measurement of lease liabilities.

The Company has elected not to recognize a right-of-use asset and corresponding lease liability for short-term
leases with terms of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. Lease payments of these assets are
recognized as expense on straight-line basis over the lease term.

Lease liabilities

A lease liability is recognized at the commencement date of a lease. The lease liability is initially recognized at the
present value of the lease payments to be made over the term of the lease, discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments comprise of fixed payments less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees, exercise price of a
purchase option when the exercise of the optian is reasonably certain to occur, and any anticipated termination
penalties. The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are expensed in the pericd in
which these are incurred.

Lease lizhilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The crrying amounts are re-
measured if there is a change in the following: future lease payments arising from a change in an index or a rate
used; residual guarantee; lease term; certainty of a purchase option and termination penalties. When a lease
liability is re-measured, an adjustment is made to the corresponding right-of-use asset, or to statement of profit
or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use assat is fully written down.
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2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment,
Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is
recognized for the amount for which asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use, Non-financial assets that suffered an
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at sach reporting date. Reversals of the
impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, if impairment losses had not been recognized. An
impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as share capital and recognized at their face value. Incrementzl costs directy
attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, if any.

Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long term financing are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of
respective qualifying assets acquired out of the praceeds of such long term financing. All other interest, mark-up
and other charges are recognized in statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit, are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined
as follaws:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered
obsolete are carried at nil value. In transit stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued at invoice amount plus
other charges paid thereon.

Stock in trade
Cost of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follaws;

(i} For raw materials: Weighted average cost.

(iiy For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including a portion
of production overheads

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid therecn. Waste stock is
valued at net realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ardinary course of business less estimated cost of
completion and estimated costs necessary to make a sale. Provision for obsolete and slow moving items is made
based on management’s estimate.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, balance with banks in current and saving accounts and other
short term highly liguid instruments that are readily convertible intc known amounts of cash and which are
subject to insignificant risk of changes in values.

Staff retirement gratuity

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the
minimurm qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme, calculated from the date of their joining with
the Company. The Company's obligation under the scheme is determined through actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Actuarial Cost Method. The methad involves making assumptions about discount rates,
future salary increases and martality rates. The latest actuarial valuation was conducted by an independent
actuary. The obligation at the date of statement of financial position is measured at the present value of the
estimated future cash outflows. All contributions are charged to the statement of profit or lass for the year.

Actuarial gains and losses (remeasurement gains [/ losses) on staff retirement gratuity are recognized immediately
in other comprehensive income.
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2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present ahbligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligations and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of abligation.

Taxation and levy
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing
law for taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected
to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted. Final taxes levied under the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 and any
excess aver the amount designated as provision for current tax are charged as levy in statement of profit or loss.
The charge for current tax and levy also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax
and levy made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from
differences between the carrying amount of assets and liahilities in the finandal statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be
available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based
on tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the statement of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distribution to the Caompany's sharehalders is recognized as & liability in the Company's finandal
statements in the period in which it is dedared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which
these are approved by the Board of Directors.

Financial instruments

Classification and measurement of financial instruments
Financial assets

a) Classification

The Company cassifies its financial assets at amortized cost. The classification depends on the Company’s
business madel for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

b) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are
directly attributzble to the acquisition of the financial asset. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest. Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business model for managing
the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company dassifies its debt instruments at amortized
cost. Finandal assets that are held for collecion of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these finandial assets is
included in other income using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities are subseguently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognized directly in profit or loss and presented in other
incame / {other expenses).

Financial liabilities
Classification and measurement

Financial liahilities are classified and measured at amortized cost. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss. Any gain or loss on de-recognition is also included in statement of profit or loss.
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ii)

iii)
(a)

(b)

iv)

Impairment of financial assets
The Company recognizes alowance for Expected Credt Lossas (ECLs) an financial assets measured at amorteed cast.

The Company measures loss allowance for ECLs at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs except for the bank balances
and debt securities for which credit risk (the risk of default accurring over the expected life of the financial
instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months
after the reporting date (or a sharter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantdy since initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company cansiders reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue caost or effort. This includes both quanttative and gualitative information and analysis,
based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking
information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a finandal asset has increased significanty if it is more than past
due far a reascnable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over
the expected life of a financial instrument. 12-manths ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events
that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

Loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment
with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based an whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Company expects no significant recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets
that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company's
pracedures far recovery of amaunts due.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘credit-impaired’ when one or mare events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;
- & breach of contract such as a default;

the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise; or
- itis probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or ether financial recrganization.

De-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities
Financial assets

The Company de-recognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights ta the cash flows from the asset expire,
or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all
of the risks and rewards of awnership and does not retain contral aver the transferred asset. Any interest in such
de-recognized financial assets that is created or retained by the Company is recognized as a separate asset or

liability.
Financial liabilities

The Company de-recagnizes a financial liability {or a part of financial liability) from its statement of financial
pasition when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are set off and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when
there is a legally enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize
the assets and to settle the liabilities simultansously.
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2.14

2.15

2.16

217

2.18

i)

iii)

iv)

v)

vi)

2,19

Borrowings

Financing and barrowings are initially recognized at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized cost.
Any difference between the proceeds and redemption value is recognized in the statement of profit or loss over
the period of borrowings using the effective interest method.

Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.

QOther recsivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expacted credit losses.
Trade and other payables

Liahilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normally the
transaction cost and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Company operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are
presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. All monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date.
Transactions in fareign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in fareign currencies are
charged or cradited to statement of profit or loss.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers - Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the
goods, which is generally at the time of delivery.

Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method. This is a method of
calculating the amortized cost of a finandial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using
the effective interest rate, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the
expected life of the financial asset to the net carrying amount of the finandal asset.

Other revenue
Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment Is established.
Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring gooeds to a
customer before the customer pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as
financial assets for impairment purposes.

Right of return assets

Right of raturn assats represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of
customers who may exercise their right to return the goods and claim a refund. Such rights are measured at the
value at which the inventory was previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any
impairment.

Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has
received consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration bafore the Company transfers goods,
a cantract liability is recognized when the payment is received. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when
the Company accomplishes its performance obligations undar the contract.

Earnings [ (less) per share

The Company presents Earnings Per Share (EPS) / Loss Per Share (LPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS [/ (LPS)
is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ardinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ardinary shares outstanding during the year.

al
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2.20

2.21

31

6.1

Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization
becomes certain.

Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclased when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company; or the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation
that arises from past events but it is not probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation, or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with setiement
reliability.

ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2025 2024 2025 2024
(NUMBER OF SHARES) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
9 060 000 9 060 000 QOrdinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully

paid in cash 90,600 90,600

600 000 600 000 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each

issued as fully paid bonus shares 6,000 6,000
9 660 000 9 660 000 96,600 96,600

All shares are equally eligible to receive dividends and the repayment of capital. Moreover each share
represents cne vate at shareholders' meeting of the Company.

DIRECTORS' LOANS

These represent unsecured interest free loans obtained from the directors of the Company to meet the liquidity
requirements of the Company. These loans are repayable at the discretion of the Company.

PREMIUM OMN ISSUE OF SHARES
This reserve can be utilized by the Company conly for the purpose specified in section 81 of the Companies Act,

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT - NET OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Balance as at 01 July 461,610 475,667
Less: Transferred to accumulated loss in respect of incremental

depreciation charged during the year - net of deferred income tax 13,355 14,057
Balance as at 30 June 448,255 461,610

Freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and
laboratory equipment of the Company were revalued by an independent valuer, Messrs Zafar Igbal and
Company on 27 June 2023 on the basis of present prevailing market prices. Previously these assets were
revalued by independent valuers on 30 June 2020, 29 June 2019, 30 June 2016, 28 June 2013, 10 April 2007,
01 July 2003 and 30 September 2001.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

Taxable temporary difference

Accelerated tax depreciation 239,760 232,082
Deductible temporary differences

Staff retirement gratuity (19,732) (11,400)

Provision for doubtful loans and advances (73) (72)

Provision for doubtful other receivables (187) (187)

Provision for obsalete stores, spare parts and loose tools (5,912) (5,912)

(204) (199)

Unused tax losses and unabsorbed tax depreciation (124,215) (103,838)

(150,323) (121,508)

89,437 110,474

al
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7.1

Movement in deferred income tax liability balance is as follows:

At beginning of the year
Add / (less):

- accelerated tax depreciation
- right-of-use asset

- staff retirement gratuity
- provision for doubtful loans and advances

- provision for doubtful ather receivables

- provision for obsolete stores, spare parts and loase tools
- lease liability

- allowance for expected credit losses

- unused tax losses and unabsorbed tax depriciation

Net movement of temporary differences (Note 7.1.1)

7.1.1 Charged to the statement of profit or loss:

8.1

8.2

Net movement of temporary differences (Note 7.1)

- on remeasurement of staff retirement gratuity

STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY

The amount included in the statement of financial position is as follows:
Present value of defined benefit obligation

Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Balance as at 01 July

Add:

Provision for the year (Note 8.3)

Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income (Note 8.4)

Less:
Retirement benefit paid
Benefits due but not yet paid

Balance as at 30 June

2025

2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

al

110,474 112,714

7,678 (2,979)

. (690)
(8,332) 407

(1) (72)

- (187)

- (5,912)
. 459

(5) (39
(20,377) 6,773

(21,037) (2,240)
89,437 110,474

(21,037) (2,240)

1,897 (1,926)

(19,140) (4,166)
68,041 39,312
39,312 40,714
40,290 20,514

6,543 (6,642)
86,145 54,586

(18,104) (14,644)

- (630)

(18,104) (15,274)
68,041 39,312

Reconciliation of present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June is given below:

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 July
Current service cost

Past service cost

Interest cost

Retirement benefit paid

Benefits due but not yet paid

Actuarial gain from changes in financial assumptions
Experience adjustments

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June

39,312 40,714
30,413 15,139
5,414 -
4,463 5,375
(18,104) (14,644)
- (630)

(91) (28)
6,634 (6,614)
68,041 39,312
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
8.3 Provision for the year

Current service cost 30,413 15,139

Past service cost 5,414 -

Interest cost 4,463 5,375
43,290 20,514

8.3.1 Pravision for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales (Note 24) 37,067 18,873

Distribution cost (Note 25) 139 65

Administrative expenses (MNote 26) 3,084 1,576

. 40,290 20,514
8.4 Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income

Actuarial gain from changes in financial assumptions (91) (28)

Experience adjustments 6,634 (5,614)

6,543 (6,642)

2025 2024

8.5 Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discaunt rate for interest cost in the statement of profit or loss charge (per anni 14.75% 16.25%
Discount rate for year end obligation (per annum) 11.75% 14.75%
Average duration of the benefit 5 5
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05  SLIC 2001-05
set back 1 year set back 1 year
Withdrawal rate Age based Age based
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

8.5.1 Assumptions regarding future mortality are based on actuarial advice in accordance with published statistics
and experience in Pakistan.

8.6 The estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 30 June 2026 is
Rupees 45.477 million.

8.7 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions:

Reasonahbly possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have resulted in present value of defined benefit obligation as stated below:

Discount rate 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (3,230) (2,020)
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 3,653 2,278
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 3,653 2,278
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (3,285) (2,054)

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is unlikely to oceur, and changes in some aof the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit plan to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value
of the defined benefit plan calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period)
has been applied.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to
previous year, except for certain changes as given in Note 8.5.
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8.8

8.9

a)

b)

i)

9.1

10.

10.1

10.1.1

10.2

Expected benefit payments for future years:

al

Within i-2 2-3 3-4 Mare than
1 year years years years 4 years

RUPEES IN THOUSAND:

2025 23,615 20,541 18,310 18,398 1,129,616
2024 10,204 8,577 7,781 7,317 723,015

Risks associated with the scheme

Final salary risk {linked to inflation risk)

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is
calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit
amount increases as salary increases.

Demaographic risks

Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced
in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal risk

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the
withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled bensfits of the beneficiary.

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 138,991 138,009
Accrued liabiliies and other payables [Note 9.1) 141,380 651,265
Contract lizbilities - unsecured 68,376 198,737
Income tax deducted at source 2,075 2,306
Sales tax payable 43,154 38,237
Warkers' welfare fund 7,569 7,569

402,045 446,123

These include gratuity due but not paid to an ex-employee amounting to Rupees 0.630 million (2024: Rupees 0.630
millian).

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Running and cash finances (Mote 10.1) 346,844 187,843

Others - unsecured

Related parties (NCItE 102:1 329 09g 307.099
675,943 494,942

These financas are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured against
hypothecation of stocks and further secured against the pledge of cotton, tencel and yarn. These form part of total
credit facility of Rupees 565 million {2024: Rupees 565 millien). The rates of mark-up range from 13.59% to
21.72% (2024: 22.96% to 24.40% ) per annum on the balance outstanding.

The main facilities of letters of credit and guarantzes aggregate to Rupees 397.40 million (2024: Rupeess 330
million). The ameunts utilized at 30 June 2025 were Rupees 272,760 million {2024 Rupees 225,601 millien),
Securities of these facilities are the same as mentioned in Note 10.1.

These represent interest free loans obtained from directors of the Company to meet the Campany's working capital
requirements. These are repayable on demand.
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11. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Contingencies

i} An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore on 30 July 2021
against the order of Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue for the tax year 2017 against demand of Rupees 8.966
million regarding non-deduction of withholding tax from certain parties under various clauses of section 153 of the
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The related provision is not made in these financial statements in view of favorable
outcome of the appeal, on advice of legal counsel.

i) An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore dated 16 April 2019
against the order of Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) dated 14 November 2018, for demand of
Rupees 14.663 million by the tax department regarding disallowance of withholding taxes as adopted in income tax
return for the tax year 2016, The related provision is not made in these financial statements in view of favorable
outcome of the appeal, on advice of legal counsel,

iii) The Company filed appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore on 21 March 2019 against the
order of Additional Commissicner Inland Revenue for demand of Rupees 114.118 million related to nullifying the
proration of the income between FTR and NTR as adopted by the Company for the tax year 2014, The related
provision Is not made In these financial statements In view of favorable autcome of the appeal, on advice of legal
counsel.

iv) An appeal has been filed before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahare in March 201% because Additional
Commissioner Inland Revenue amended the assessment for the tax year 2007 and created a demand of Rupees
5.766 million on the issue of proration of specific expenses related to normal tax regime to final tax regime. The
related provision is not made in these finandial statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal, on advice of
legal counsel,

v} A reference has been filed before the Lahore High Court, Lahore by Regional Tax Office (RTO), Faisalabad on 04
December 2019 against the order made by Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore regarding an appeal filed by
the Company dated 07 June 2017 against the demand of Rupees 22.378 million by the RTO, Faisalabad regarding
the disallowance of minimum tax adjustment for the tax year 2011, The related provision is not made in these
financial statements on the basis of the advice from legal counsel that the reference filed by the Department will not
be successful.

vi) On 13 August 2020, the Supreme Court of Pakistan upheld the Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC)
Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intra vires, In connection with this decision, the Company filed a writ petition in
Lahore High Court, Lahore on 16 September 2020 against the charge of GIDC at the rate of captive power
consumer instead of industrial consumer. Lahore High Court, Lahcore suspended the payment of Rupees 26.344
million related to this difference, subject to furnishing of post dated chegues which have been submitted by the
Company. Keeping In view the opinlon of the legal caunsel of the Campany, the related provision Is nat made In
these finandal staterments as there are strong grounds of favourable outcome of the petition.

vii} An appeal was filed in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 10 August 2017 against cost of supply of Re-Gasified
Liguefied Natural Gas (RLNG) by Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited {SNGPL) amounting to Rupees 12.224 million.
This appeal was allowed by Lahcre High Court, Lahore on 13 December 2019 by asking Oil and Gas Regulatory
Autharity (OGRA) to conduct a public hearing to determine the level of cost of supply of RLNG. Keeping In view the
opinion of the legal counsel of the Company, the related provision is not made in these financial statements as there
are strong grounds that the dedsion of the proposed public hearing of OGRA will be decided in favour of the
Company.

viii) Sindh High Court, Karachi made decision on 04 June 2021 about the levy of Sindh Infrastructure Cess, against
which the Company was contingently liable for Rupees 3 million although guarantees were submitted by the
Company's Bank for the same amount. &gainst the decision, the Company lodged a constitution petition no.
471972021 dated 13 August 2021 in Supreme Court of Pakistan (SCP). Thereafter, on 01 September 2021, 5CP
allowed the petidon, suspended the judgement of Sindh High Court, Karachi and leave to appeal was granted.
However the case is not yet fixed for hearing by SCP. On advice of legal counsel, in view of possible favourable
outcome, no pravision is accounted for in these financial staterments.

ix) Guarantees of Rupees 142.960 million {2024: Rupess 104.052 million) are given by the banks of the Company
to SMGPL against gas connections and Faisalabad Electric Supply Company Limited (FESCO) against electricity
connection.

b) Commitments
i) Letters of credit for capital expenditure are of Rupees Nil as at 30 June 2025 (2024: Rupees 13,382 million).

i) Letters of credit for other than capital expenditure are of Rupees 129,800 million as at 30 June 2025 (2024: Rupees
34.067 million).
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12.2 Depreciation charge for the year is allocated as follows:
2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Cost of sales (Note 24) 55,412 52,699
Administrative expenses (Note 26) 3,883 3,873
59,295 56,572
12.3 Particulars cf immovable properties are as follows:
Particulars Lacation Area ‘ Covered
area
Kanals Sq ft.
Manufacturing faclity and Head Offics 35-Kilometars, Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad. 135495 340 097
12.4 Had thera been no revaluation, cost, accumu ated depreciation and bock value of tha revalued assets would have beea as follows:
Accumulated Net book
Cost P
depreaciation value
----------- {RUPEES IN THOUSANDY) - ---------=
rreehold land 13,299 - 13,299
Buildings on freehald land:
Mills 121,539 87,225 34,714
Othes EARE. ] 18,306 10,874
Plant and machinery 1,243,430 705,943 533,482
Electric instal'ations / appliances 38,254 18,858 19,396
Generatars 82,044 53,328 18,716
Laboratory equipment 11,533 H,130 3,403
2025 1,535,679 Sih, /95 Hi3,Ha54
2024 1,516,828 873,771 516,057
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13.

14.

14.1

15.

15.1

15.2

16.

16.1

16.2

16.3

17.

17.1

17.2

2025 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits 3,726 3,726
Prepayments 1,524 1,308
5,250 032
Less: Current portion shawn under current assets (Mote 20) 1,106 1,208
4,144 3,824

LONG TERM LOANS

Considered good - secured 466 464
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (MNote 18) 276 264
190 200

These long term loans to employees represent interest free loans given to employees, receivable in manthly
installments. These loans are secured against balance o the credit of employees in the staff retirement gratuity. Fair
value adjustment in accordance with the reguirements of IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' arising in respect of staff loans
is not considered material and hence not recognized.

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS

Stores {Note 15.1) 32,764 27,7494
Spare parts 61,522 59,833
Loose tools 298 255
34,584 87,836
Less: Pravisicn for slow moving / obsalste stares, spare parts and loose tools 20,387 20,387
74,197 67,449

These include stores in transit of Rupees Nil (2024; Rupees 0,989 millicn).

Stores and spare parts include items which may result in fixed capital expenditure but are not distinguishable.

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials (Note 16.1) 159,548 116,875
Worlk-in-process 81,717 53,826
Finished goods 11,617 26,312
Waste 11,345 52

304,227 197,565

These include raw material in transit of Rupees 24.874 million (2024: Rupees 57.084 million).

Stock in trade of Rupees 22.161 million {2024 Rupees 20.570 million) is being carried at net realizable value.

The aggregate amount of write-down of inventories tc net realizable value recognized as an expense during the year
was Rupees 2,421 millicn (2024: Rupees 0.777 millian)

TRADE DEBTS

Considered gaad:

Unsecured 156,428 267,893

Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Mote 17.1) 702 6B7
155,726 267,206

Allewance for expected credit losses

Balance as on 01 July G687 552

Add: Recognized during the year (Note 27) 15 135

Balance as on 30 June 702 687

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the ime of delivery, while payment is generally dus within 30 days
from delivery.

al
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
18. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Considered good:

Employees - interest free:

Against salary 344 135
Against expenses:

Executive 200 200

Other emplayees 150 285

390 485

734 620

Advances to suppliers / service providers 915 1,103

Letters of credit 281 383

Current portion of long term leans (Nate 14) 276 264

2,210 2,370

Less: Pravision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 18.1) 252 249

1,958 2,121

18.1 Provision for doubtful loans and advances

Balance as on 01 July 245 -
Add: Recognized during the year (Note 27} 3 249
Balance as on 30 June 252 249

19, TAXATION AND LEVY - NET

Advance income Ex 134,281 88,8538
Less: Levy payable 56,155 43,251
78,126 45,607

20. SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Deposits 10,927 11,100
Prepaid insurance 543 -
Current portion of long term deposits and prepayments (Note 13) 1,106 1,208

12,576 12,308

21. OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Sales tax and spedal excise duty refundable 60,916 60,621
Miscellaneous 2,591 644
63,507 61,265
Less: Pravision for doubtul other receivables 544 644
62,863 60,621

22, CASH AND BANK BALANCES

With banks:

on current accounts 8,671 15,821

on saving account (Note 22.1) 6,941 10,037
15,612 25,858

Cash in hand 1,406 1,010
17,018 26,868

22.1 Saving account carried profit ranging from 0.05% to 0.12% per annum (2024: 0.07% per annum),
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2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
23. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

Sales of yarn 4,908,925 3,771,713
Waste 397,517 325,225
5,306,442 4,096,938
Less: Sales tax 814,002 636,849
4,482,440 3,460,089

23.1 The amount of Rupees 154.733 million included in contract liabilities (Note 9) as at 30 June 2024 has
been recognized as revenue in 2025 (2024: Rupees 50.254 million).

23.2 Revenue is recognized at point in time as per the terms and conditions of underlying contracts with
customers. Moreover all sales were made within Pakistan.

24, COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed (Note 24.1) 2,665,503 1,986,805
Loading, unloading and weighment charges 270 197
Salaries, wages and other benefits 310,944 171,964
Staff retirement benefit (Note 8.3.1) 37,067 18,873
Stores, spare parts and loose taols consumed 121,263 93,746
Packing materials consumed 43,043 33,092
Repair and maintenance 406 359
Fuel and power 1,223,473 995,493
Insurance 3,728 3,436
Other factory overheads 2,960 2,319
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 12.2) 55,412 52,699
4,464,069 3,358,983
Work-in-process
Opening stock 53,826 33,537
Closing stock (81,717} (53,826)
(27,891) (20,289)
Cost of goods manufactured 4,436,178 3,338,694
Finished goods
Opening stock 26,864 80,123
Closing stock (22,962) (26,864)
3,902 53,259
4,440,080 3,391,953

24.1 Raw materials consumed

Opening stock 116,875 199,819
Add: Purchased during the year 2,748,176 1,903,861
2,865,051 2,103,680
Less: Closing stock 199,548 116,875
2,665,503 1,986,805
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25, DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits

Staff retirement benefit (Note 8.3.1)
Outward freight and handling
Commission to selling agents

26. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits

Staff retirement benefit (Note 8.3.1)
Rent, rates and taxes

Insurance

Travelling and conveyance
Vehicles' running

Entertainment

Auditor's remuneration (Note 26.1)
Advertisement

Postage and telephone

Utilities

Printdng and stationery

Repair and maintenance

Fee and subscription

Legal and professional
Miscellaneous

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Note 12.2)
Depreciation on right-of-use asset

26.1 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee
Half vearly review
Other certification

27. OTHER EXPENSES

Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 17.1)
Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 18.1)
Pravision for doubtful other receivables

Provision for slow moving / obsolete stores, spare
parts and loose tools

28. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets

Prafit on saving account

Income from non-financial assets

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Credit balances written back

2025

2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

al

1,236 1,113
139 65
14 25
5,553 4,304
6,942 5,507
28,680 27,045
3,084 1,576
2,240 3,602
2,286 2,679
4,176 4,132
5,867 8,822
1,915 1,840
1,125 1,075
147 239
1,473 1,446
2,733 4,917
404 446
547 644
1,720 2,162
847 736
1,052 1,727
3,883 3,873
- 436
62,179 67,397
950 900
125 125
50 50
1,125 1,075
15 135

3 249

- 644

- 20,387

18 21,415

2 1
367 276

- 4,793

367 5,069
369 5,070
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29.

30.

30.1

31.

311

al

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

FINANCE COST

Mark-up on:
Short term borrowings 47,936 48,678
Lease liability - 314
Bank charges and commission 1,646 1,186
49,582 50,178
LEVY
Levy for the year 56,155 43,251

Levy represents minimum tax on turnover under section 113 of the Income Tax QOrdinance, 2001.

TAXATION

Deferred (Note 7.1.1) (19,140) (4,166)

The Company has unused tax losses of Rupees 42B8.328 million {2024: Rupees 358.062 million)
representing unabsorbed depreciation of Rupees 247.790 million (2024: Rupees 177.524 million) and
tax losses of Rupees 180.538 million (2024: Rupees 180.538 million). The tax losses apart from
unabsarbed depreciation will expire in 2029. Recondiliation of tax expense and product of accounting
profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is not presented in view of unused tax losses of the
Company. Alternative corporate tax for the year ended 30 June 2021 amounting to Rupees 28.475
million is available for carry forward under section 113C of the Ordinance. Total minimum tax
available for carry forward under section 113 of the Ordinance as at 30 June 2025 is of Rupees
120.364 million. The Company has not recognized deferred income tax asset in respect of minimum
tax available for carry forward and alternative corporate tax as sufficient taxable profits would not be
available to utilize these in the forceable future. The alternate corporate tax and minimum tax would
expire as follows:

. . Amount of Accounting vear in which
ﬁccou:tlng year tto :vhlchltl::e alternate alternate corporate tax
alternate corporate tax relates corporate tax will expire
RUPEES IN
THOUSAND
2021 28,475 2031
Accounting year to which the Amount of Accounting year in which
minimum tax relates minimum tax minimum tax will expire
RUPEES IN
THOUSAND
2025 56,155 2028
2024 43,251 2027
2023 20,958 2026
120,364
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32.

33.

33.1

33.2

34.

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect an the basic loss per share which is based on:

2025 2024
Loss for the year (Rupess in thousand) (103,007) (110,376
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) 4 660 000 9 660 000
Loss per share (Rupeas) (10.66) (11.43)
2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
CASH GENMERATED FROM OPERATIONS
Lass before levy and taxation (65,992} (71,291}
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (Mote 12) 59,295 56,572
Depreciation on right-of-use asset - 436
Gain on sale of praperty, plant and equipment (Note 28) (367) (276)
Provision for staff retirement gratuity (Nate 8.3) 40,2490 20,514
Finance cost (Note 29) 49,582 50,178
Allowance for expected credit losses (Note 27) 15 135
Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 27} 3 249
Pravision for doubtful other receivables 644
Cradit balances written back - 4,793
Provision for slow moving / obsclete stores, spare parts and loose tools - 20,387
Waorking capital changes (Nate 33.1) (48,3/3) 133,055
34,453 215,396
Working capital changes
(Increase) [ decrease In current assets:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools (6,748) 8,726
Stock in trade (106,602} 115,914
Irade debts 111,465 (172,570%
Loans and advances 160 (439}
Short term deposits and prepayments (268) (4,269}
Other recelvables (2,242) (3,934
(4,295) (55,572)
(Decrease) / increase in rade and other payables (44,078) 188,627
(48,373) 133,055
Reconciliation of movement of liabilities to cash flows arising from financing activities:
2025 2024
Short term | Unclaimed || Short term Lease Unclaimed
borrowings | dividend ||borrowings| liability dividend
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)-------=nnmnmnmmnan
Balance as at 01 July 494,942 1,023 585,922 1,583 1,023
Borrowing abtained / (repaid) - net 181,001 - (20,980) - -
Repayment of lease liability - - - (1,583) -
Balance as at 30 June 675,943 1,023 494,942 - 1,023

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

I'he agqregate amount chargad in the finandial statements for remuneration including all benefits to the executives of the

Company is as follows:

Managerial remuneration

Allowances
Haouse rent
Utilities

Number of persans

[ Executives |
| 2025 | 2024 |

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
3,200 3,200
1,516 1,516
81 81
4,800 4,800
2 7

al
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34.1

34.2

35.

35.1

36.

37.

38.

39.
39.1

(a)

al

Chief Executive Officer, some of the directors and executives of the Company are provided with free Company maintained vehicles
and entitled W reimbursement of ravelling expenses, electricily, gas and water bills,

Mo remuneration was pald te any director and Chief Cxecutive Officer of the Company.
TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The relaled parlies comprise direclors and key management personnel. The Company in the normal course ol business carries oul
transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, except for remuneration to key management
personnel &s discussed in Note 34, is as follows:

Particulars Basis of relationship Nature of transactian 2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Direclors Members of board of directors ~ Borrowings obtained [ (repaid) - net 22,000 (152,517)
The Company had entered into transactions or have arrangements f agreements in place with following directors:

i} Mr. Adrad Amer

i} khawaja Amer Khurshid
i) Mrs. Mazma Amer

iv) Mr. Anns Amer

2025 2024
(NUMBER OF PERSONS)
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

Number of employees as at 30 June o911 531
Average number of employees during the year 604 437

PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2025 2024
100% plant capadty converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for 1 095 shifts
(2024: 1 093 shifts) (Kqgs.) 14 2/5000 14314110
Actual production converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for L 087 shifts
(2024: 1 068 shifts) (Kgs.) 10 9493 EAQ J 25 3HY

REASONS FOR LOW PRODUCTION

The main reason for low production is due to manufacturing of fine counts of yarn, due to which the machines run an slow speed.
Mareover, nermal repair and maintenance was also the factor for low production.

ENTITY - WIDE INFORMATION

These financial statements have been preparad an the basls of single repartable segment. All non-current assets of the Company at
the reporting date are located and operating in Pakistan. There was large consumer mix during the year {2024: cne major
cuslomer representing revenue of Rupees 649,022 million).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to a variety of finandal risks: market risk (induding currency risk, other price risk and interest
rate risk), credit risk and liguidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved hy the Board of Directors. The
Board provides prindples for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, cther price
risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk, investment of excess liquidity and use of non-derivative financial instruments.

Market risk
(i} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value ar future cash flowis of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in forsign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commercial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to
transactions in foreign currencies. The Company has no receivable / pavable balance in foreign currency as at 30 June 2025 (2024:
Mil.

(ii) other price risk
Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in markel prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by faclors

specific to the individual finandial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments traded in the market,
The Company is not exposed to other price risk.
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al

(iii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to
bank balance in saving account and short term borrowings. Financial instruments at variable
rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial instruments at fixed rate
expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial
instruments was as follows:

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Floating rate instruments

Financial assets

Balance in saving account (Note 22) 6,941 10,037

Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings (Note 10) 346,844 187,843

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not
affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables
held constant, loss after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 3.399 million (2024:
Rupees 1.778 million) higher / lower mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense /
income on floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is prepared assuming the amounts
of financial instruments outstanding at reporting date were outstanding for the whole year.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss
for the other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial
assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was as follows:

Loans and advances 810 599
Deposits 14,653 14,826
Trade debts 155,726 267,206
Other receivables 700 -
Bank balances 15,612 25,858

187,501 308,489
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The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external
credit ratings {if available) or to historical information about counterparty default rate.

al

Rating 2025 2024
i:‘r’: Longterm  Agency (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Banks
Conventional accounts
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 958 3,461
Faysal Bank Limited A-1+ AA PACRA 80 30
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 1 2
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+ ADA PACRA 1 1
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited A-1+ AA+ PACRA 177 7,101
MCR Bank Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 8% B8
Soneri Bank Limited A-1+ AA- PACRA 6 6
Bank AL Habib Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 4 4
Sindh Bank Limited A1+ AA- VIS 10 10
1,326 10,753
Shariah compliant accounts
Bank Alfalah Limited A-1+ AAA PACRA 1 1
AlBaraka Bank [Pakistan) Limited A-L AA- VIS 634 634
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+4 AAA VIS 6,703 4,426
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 6,948 10,044
14,286 15,105
15,612 25,858

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade debts. Management uses actual historical credit loss experience, credit risk
characteristics and past days due, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment to determine expected credit loss allowance

To manage exposure of credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into
account the customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors. Company's significant revenue is earned
from customers where advance payment is received. Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the senior
management. The management has set a maximum credit period limit for each type of customer in order to reduce
the credit risk.

The Company's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to trade debts is as follows:

GROSS AMOUNT EXPECTED CREDIT
2025 2024 2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Not past due 85,798 160,776 - -
Upte 1 month 14,628 37,838 - -
1 to 8 months 44,576 68,475 - -
8 months to 1 year 10,724 117 - -
More than 1 year 702 687 702 B6B7

156,428 267,893 702 687

The management believes that all unimpaired amounts are collectable in full, based on historical payment behaviour
and extensive analysis of consumer credit risk.

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due
consideration to their strong financial standing, the management does not expect non-performance by these
counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly, the credit risk is minimal.
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(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that
are settled by delivering cash or other financial asset. The Company's approach to manage liquidity risk is by maintaining
sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adeguate amount of committed credit facilites. At 30 June 2025,
the Company had Rupees 218.156 million (2024: Rupees 377.157 million) available funded borrowing limits from financial
institutions and Rupees 17.018 million (2024: Rupees 26.868 million) cash and bank balances. The management believes
the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The
amounts disclosed in the table are undiscounted cash flows:

Carrying Contractual 6 months
amount cash flows or less

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2025:

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 280,871 280,871 280,871
Short term borrowings 675,943 699,632 699,632
Accrued mark-up 10,732 10,732 10,732
Unclaimed dividend 1,023 1,023 1,023

968,569 992 258 992 258

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2024:

Non-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and aother payables 194,274 199,274 199,274
Short term barrowings 494,942 517,004 517,004
Accrued mark-up 10,151 10,151 10,151
Unclaimed dividend 1,023 1,023 1,023

705,390 727,452 727,452

The contractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of mark-up rates
effective as at 30 June. The rates of mark-up have been disclosed in Mote 10 to these financial statements.

39.2 Financial instruments by categories

| At amortized cost |

2025 2024
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Financial assets as per statament of financial position

Loans and advances 210 599
Depasits 14,653 14,826
Trade debts 155,726 267,206
Other receivables 700 -
Cash and bank balances 17,018 26,868

188,907 309,499

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position

Trade and other payables 280,371 199,274
Short term borrowings 675,943 494 942
Accrued mark-up 10,732 10,151
Unclaimed dividend 1,023 1,023

968,569 705,390
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39.2 Recenciliation to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:

al

2025 2024
Assets as Assats as
. . Other than per . . Other than per
Financial . . Financial - .
financial statement financial statement
assets ) . assets .
assets of financial assets of financial
position position
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Long term deposits and prepayments 3,726 418 4,144 3,726 98 3,824
Long term loans 190 - 150 200 - 200
Trade debts 155,726 - 155,726 267,206 - 267,206
Loans and advances 620 1,338 1,958 399 1,722 2,121
Short term deposits and prepayments 10,927 1,649 12,576 11,100 1,208 12,308
Other receivables 700 62,163 62,863 - 60,621 680,621
Cash and bank balances 17,018 - 17,018 26,868 - 26,8638
188,907 65,568 254,475 309,499 63,649 373,148
2025 2024
Liabilities Liabilities
. . Other than as per . . Other than as per
Finaneial X . Finaneial . -
liabilities financial statement liabilities financial statement
liabilities | of financial liabilities | of financial
position position
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Trade and other payables 280,871 121,174 402,045 199,274 246,849 446,123
Short term borrowings 675,943 - 675,943 494,942 - 494 5942
Accrued mark-up 10,732 - 10,732 10,151 - 10,151
Undaimed dividend 1,023 - 1,023 1,023 - 1,023
968,569 121,174 1,089,743 705,390 246,349 952 239

39.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsetting as there are no enforceable master netting

arrangements and similar agreements.

39.5 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in
order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintgin an optimal capital structure to
reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amaunt of
dividends to be paid to sharehalders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry
and the reguirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is
calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. Borrowings represent short term borrowings obtained by the
Company as referred to Note 10. Total capital employed includes 'total equity' as shown in the statement of financial position

plus 'borrowings'.

2025 2024
Borrowings Rupees in thousand 675,943 494,942
Total equity Rupees in thousand 710,997 818,650
Total capital employed Rupees in thousand 1,386,940 1,313,592
Gearing ratio Percentage 48.74 37.68

The increase in gearing ratio resulted mainly due to increase in barrowings of the Company.
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40.

41.

RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value hierarchy

Certain financial assets and financial liabilities are not measured at fair value if the carrying amounts are
a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to the short-term nature, carrying amounts of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value. For the majority
of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their carrying
amounts. Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial instruments
that are recognized and measured at fair value in these financial statements. To provide an indication
about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has dassified its financial
instruments into following three levels. However as at the reporting date, the Company has no such
type of financial instruments which are required to be grouped into these levels. These levels are
explained as under:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2. The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as litte as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market base (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fair value hierarchy

The judgments and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are
recognized and measured at fair value in the financial statements. To provide an indication about the
reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has dassified its non-financial
assets into the following three levels:

al

[Level1| Level2 | Level3 | Total |

At 30 June 2025

Freehold land - 207,818 - 207,818
Buildings on freehold land - 230,125 - 230,125
Plant and machinery - 663,292 - 663,292
Electric installations / appliances - 32,199 - 32,189
Generators - 44,222 - 44,222
Laboratory equipment - 8,122 - 8,122
Total non-financial assets - 1,185,778 - 1,185,778

At 30 June 2024

Freehold land - 207,818 - 207,818
Buildings an freehold land - 242,237 - 242,237
Plant and machinery - 677,712 - 677,712
Electric installations / appliances - 33,894 - 33,894
Generators - 46,550 - 46,550
Laboratory equipment - 8,549 - 8,549
Total non-financial assets - 1,216,760 - 1,216,760

The Company’s policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at
the end of the reporting period.

There was no transfer between level 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.
Further, there was no transfer in and out of level 3 measurements.
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al

(if) Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values
The Company obtains Independent valuation for its freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations
/ appliances, generators and laboratory equipment (classified as property, plant and equipment). The management updates
the assessment of the fair value of each property taking into account the most recent independent valuations. The
management determines property's value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair value of
freehold land is current prices in an active market for similar lands. The best evidence of fair value cf buildings is to calculate
fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of depreciation on the new construction  replacement
value of the same buildings. The best evidence of fair value of plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances,
generators and laboratory equipment is to calculate fair depreciated market value by applying an appropriate annual rate of
depreciation on the value of new plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment
of the same specifications.
Valuation processes
The Company engages extarnal, indapendent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the Company’s freehold land,
buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment after
significant intervals. The fair value of the freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations /
appliances, generators and laboratory equipment has been determined by Messrs Zafar Igbal and Company as at 27 June
2023.
Changes In fair values are analyzed at each reporting date during discussion between the management of the Company and
the valuer. As part of this discussion the team presents a report that explains the reason for the fair value movements.

42, DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENT FOR COMPANY NOT ENGAGED IN SHARIAH NON-PERMISSIBLE BUSINESS
ACTIVITIES AS ITS CORE BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
[Description [ Note | 2025 [ 2024

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Revenue earned from shariah compliant business 23 4,492,440 3,460,089
Shariah compliant bank deposits and bank balances
Bank balances 39.1 (b)Y 14,286 15,105
Profit earned on shariah compliant bank account 28 2 1
Other income - shariah compliant
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment 28 367 276
Credit balances written back 28 - 4,793
Profits earned or interest paid on any conventional loan / advance
Mark-up on short term borrowings 29 47,936 48,678
Mark-up on lease liability - 314
Leans / advances obtained as per Islamic mode
Contract liabilities 9 68,376 198,737
Shart term barrowings 10 329,099 307,099
There is no dividend or profit earned on any investment, no exchange gain =arned and no mark-up paid en [slamic mode of
financing. Moreover there was no late payment or liquidity damages. Furthermare the relationship with shariah compliant
banks is related to bank accounts as given in Note 39.1(b).

43. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These finandial statements were authorized for issue on September 29, 2025 by the Beard of Directors of the Company.

44, CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Comparative figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, nc significant re-
arrangaments have been made.

45. GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees, unless otherwise stated.

M Ssde
AIZAD AMER KHAWAXJA AMER KHURSHID Muhampmad Saqib Ehsan
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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1.1 Name of the Company [ AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

2.1. Pattern of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at

FORM 20
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f))
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
| 30-06-2025 |

-—Shareholdings——--

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
591 1 100 18,149
233 101 500 51,822

47 501 1,000 40,487
61 1,001 5,000 151,082
13 5,001 10,000 105,403
6 10,001 15,000 73,778
5 15,001 20,000 88,329
3 20,001 25,000 67,017
1 25,001 30,000 30,000
1 35,001 40,000 39,421
1 40,001 45,000 40,587
1 70,001 75,000 75,000
1 75,001 80,000 78,225
1 85,001 90,000 88,295
1 95,001 100,000 100,000
1 260,001 265,000 264,125

1 280,001 285,000 281,759
1 430,001 435,000 431,446
1 740,001 745,000 742,697
1 885,001 890,000 890,000
1 1,180,001 1,185,000 1,184,193
1 1,475,001 1,480,000 1,475,611
1 1,640,001 1,645,000 1,640,170
1 1,700,001 1,705,000 1,702,404
975 9,660,000
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al

Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Govermance (C'CG)

As on June 30, 2025

_ Na. of Shares
ST, N0, N > 3 e 1y T
Sr. No Name Teld Percentage
Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): - 0.0000
Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)
1 CNC - TRUSTEE GOLDEN ARROW SEIECTED STOCK FUND (CD)C) ,500 0.0673
Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):
| ML ATZAD AMER 1,740,170 18.0142
2 MRS NAZIMA AMER 1966311 203552
3 MR, ANNS AMER 1,475,611 152755
4 MISS YUSRA AMER £90,000 62133
3 KITAWATA AMIER KHURSIHIED 1,994 163 20,6435
6 SYFD KHATID ATl [,000 0.0104
7 MR MUIIAMMAD UMAR MUNLER 1,000 0.0104
Executives: - -
Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - -
Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 41,246 0.4270

Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

S. No.

L e [l e

Name

MRS. NAZIMA AMER
KHAWAJA AMEPR KHURSHID
MR.ATZAD AMER

MEILANNS AMLER

MISS YUSRA AMER

Holding
1,966,311
1,994,163
1,740,170
1,475,611
§90,000

% AGE
20.3552
20.6435
(80142
152755

1
92133

All trades in the shares of the listed company, carried out by its Directors, Executives and their
spouses and minor children shall also be disclosed:

S. No.

1
2

Name
KITAWATA AMER KHURSHID (CDCY)
MRS. NAZIMA AAMIR (CDC)

Sale

Purchase
10,000
39421
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GENDER PAY GAP STATEMENT UNDER CIRCULAR NO. 10 DATED 17 APRIL 2024

Following is gender pay gap calculated for the year ended 30 June 2024:

i.  Mean gender pay gap : Nil
ii. Median gender pay gap : Nil
iii.  Any other data : Nil

Aizad Amer
Chief Executive Officer

29 September 2025
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FORM OF PROXY

I/We of
being member(s) of
AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED holding ordinary shares as per Registered Folio
No./CDC A/c No. (for members who have shares in CDS)
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) or failing him/her
Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) (being

member of the Company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the 44™ Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 27, 2025
at 11:00 a.m. at its Registered Office 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad and/or any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand seal this day of 2025
Signed by in the
presence of

Signatures on
Rs.5/-
Revenue Stamps

(Signature must agree with the specimen
signatures registered with the Company)
Notes:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed, must be received at the Office of the Share
Registrar M/S Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 01-K Commercial, Model Town,
Lahore not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she himself/herself is a member of the
Company, except that a Corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are
deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be
rendered invalid.

4. Any individual Beneficial Owner of the Central Depository Company, entitled to vote at
this meeting must bring his / her National Identity Card with him/her to prove his/her
identity, and in case of proxy, must enclose an attested copy of his / her National
Identity Card. Representatives of Corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.
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